10 ] "\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\}\E\*\ﬁ\i\l\\\g\\\g\\k\\\\\\\\\\\\

HMICROFICHE CONTROL LABEL

AN PR
- e e S

3
AT T s s emn

REGISTRANT'S NAME %\OD‘O‘&%% \ip Q,@ i AW
o*e,@}/l V4 W M

*CURRENT ADDRESS

**FORMER NAME PROCESSED
NOV 0 9 2608

«*NEW ADDRESS D Tecaueen
FINANCIAL

FILE NO. az-ﬂ/% ‘ | FLSCAL YEAR @ TB@”O‘%[ g

*  Complete for'inltlal submissions only ** Please aote name and sddress changes

[2d

/

SUPPL (OTHER) |

| —
DEF 14A (FROXY) ‘
: OICF/BY:

12G3-4B (INITIAL FILING) AR/S (ANNUAL REPORT)

12G32BR  (REINSTATEMENT) '

JIL

DT

b%




RECEIVED

00 OCT 22 P 1

OFFICE OF HTET0
CORPORATEL Fiii~

.A.r.

©
©
&
@
©
©

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited

SmarTone




Contents

~N u

13
17
29
33
35
36
37
38
39
41
43

About SmarTone
Directors and Corporate Information
Financial Highlights

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Report of the Directors

Directors and Management Executives Profile
Group Financial Summary

Report of the Auditors

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Balance Sheet

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes to the Financial Statements




i
{
j
i
i

Say it better with

i
i
!
!
i
i

picturemail

' t's -10C

i

i

{

e

here, how's
HK?




SmarTone is Hong Kong's leading mobile network operator in
multimedia services. We are a customer-oriented company and
aim to bring our customers closer to the people, the information
and the entertainment that is important to them and, through
this, 10 generate greater shareholders' value. SmarTone is
committed to delivering the best value proposition in the market
through continual improvements in the three pillars of our
businesses - products and services, network performance and
customer service — as well as the company's brand position.

SmarTone was selected as one of Asia’s Top 20 Brands in the
annual “Top Asian Brands” survey conducted by Media
magazine in June 2003. SmarTone was the only mobile
operator to be included in the Top 20 alongside other major
international brands.

With our strong technological heritage and deep commitment
to quality service, SmarTone offers best-in-class multimedia
services which are marketed under three categories:

SmarTone = " a ground-breaking mobile multimedia service
providing information and entertainment for all customers;
SmarsTone : *, a suite of simple and easy-to-use mobile
business services for business executives and professionals to
stay ahead of the game; and messaging services, such as
picturernail”.

SmarTone was awarded a 3G licence in 2001 and is on schedule
to launch our 3G services by the end of 2004.

SmarTone offers the best network performance in Hong Kong for
both voice and muitimedia services, validated by a network quality
survey conducted by The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

SmarTone has become the leader in customer service, not only
amongst telecommunications operators, but also across all service
industries in Hong Kong. This is exemplified by the growing
number of local and regional retail and service awards received
by the company.

Hong Kong Retail Management Association’s Service & Courtesy Award

Best Team Performance Award
Supervisory Level Award
Junior Frontline Level Award

2003, 2002 & 2001
2003 & 2001
2003 & 2002

Hong Kong Retail Management Association’s Mystery Shoppers Programme

Service Category Leader

2003 Q1 & 2002 Q1

Service Retailer of the Year 2003 & 2002
Hong Kong Management Association’s Distinguished Salesperson Award
Five SmarTone-nominated staff members won 2004 & 2002
Four SmarTone-nominated staff members won 2003
Asia Pacific Customer Service Consortium'’s Customer Relationship Excellence Awards
Customer Relationship Excellence - Outstanding Achievement 2002
Call Centre of the Year (Telecommunications) 2002
Customer Service Professional of the Year 2002
Hong Kong Call Centre Association’s Call Centre Award
Call Centre Team Leader - Silver & Bronze 2002
Call Centre Professional - Bronze 2002
Next Magazine's Top Service Award
Top Service Gold Award 2003
Top Service Category Award 2004 & 2003
The Best Staff Award 2004 & 2003

Established in 1992, SmarTone was the first operator to launch
GSM mobile services in Asia in 1893 and the first in Hong Kong
to introduce automatic international roaming. We were the first
in the world to impiement Enhanced Full Rate Technology in our
natuwwark in 1997 areatly imnroving voice auality for our customears

SmarTone has been publicly listed in Hong Kong since 1998. The
company’s major shareholder is Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited
(holding about 52 %).

Eor more information please viait SmarTnne’s weheaite at
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EINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars in milfions except per share amounts)
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and loss account )
Turnover
Profit attributable to shareholders
Earnings per share ($)
Dividends per share

Total for the year ($)

Special cash dividend {$)

 Balanee sheet

Total assets
Current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Minority interest

Net assets

Share capital
Reserves

Shareholders’ funds

Cashilow

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Interest received

Purchases of fixed assets

Repurchases of shares

Dividends paid (excluding special dividend)
Other

before payment of special dividend

Special dividend paid

after payment of special dividend

Net increase in net cash* and held-to-maturity debt securities

Net (decrease)/increase in net cash* and held-to-maturity debt securities

* Net cash represents cash and bank balances, net of bank loans.

Note: The resuits for the year ended 30 June 2003 and the assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2003 have been restated to reflect the
effect of the adoption of SSAP 12 (revised) “Income taxes” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
\ as explained in Note 10 to the financial statements.

Year ended or as at 30 June

2004 2003
(restated)

3,367 2,832
466 378
0.80 0.65

0.53 0.47
Nil 3.50

4,702
(1,084)

3,618
(131)
(21)

3,466

s1y61ybiH jepueuly

58
3,408

3,466

801

74
(343}
(19)
(275)
{40)

198

(2,048}







(Financial figures are expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SmarTone has achieved solid results and delivered consistent
growth against the background of an increasingly competitive
market. Profit attributable to shareholders registered a 23%
growth on last year. Your company is optimistic about the growth
opportunities brought about by multimedia services, and it is
making significant investments in 3G.

Turnover amounted to $3,367
million, an increase of 19%
on the previous vyear.
Earnings-before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation
("EBITDA") and earnings
before interest and tax ("EBIT") increased by 22% to $319 million
and 47% to $492 million respectively. Profit attributable to
shareholders for the year totalled $466 million, representing a
growth of 23% compared to the previous year. Earnings per share
increased to $0.80.

Your Board recommends a final dividend of $0.33 per share.
Together with the interim dividend of $0.20 per share, total
dividend for the year will increase by 13% to $0.53 per share.

SmarTone has been growing its business user customer base,
with both corporate accounts and individuals. This is attributable
to your company’s superior network guality, award-winning
customer service, as well as the compelling products and services
catering to the needs of business users for instant access to
information and connectivity anywhere. Recent offerings include
an improved version of emailonthe go’, SmarTone’'s mobile
email service, which supports automatic push emails for a range
of popular PDAs. Further efforts are being made to expand
SmarTone's share in this market.

This year saw more and more SmarTone customers using mobile
multimedia services. Number of active SmarTone 80" users
increased over 2.5 times t0 16% of total postpaid customer base
in June 2004, with usage and revenue per user registering healthy
growth. Offerings available on SmarTone 800" continue to be
enriched with new innovative infotainment and messaging
services for different customer segments. These include services
allowing customers to post photos or audio visual clips on the
Internet for instant sharing and publication; advanced chat services
with user anonymity and location search features; and
M-COMMErce Services.

Quality of customer base in both business user and

consumer markets has been improving, reflected by a 3%

increase in blended ARPU for the year to $188. Postpaid

ARPU of $211 declined marginally compared to $213 for last

year, with the continuing pressure on local voice tariffs -
largely offset by the increase in usage of roaming and :
multimedia services. This year-on-year drop masked a 4%
increase in postpaid ARPU for the second half of the year to
$216 from $207 for the first half. Data services, comprising
SMS and multimedia services, grew by approximately 70%
compared to June 2003 and accounted for 7% of mobile
services revenue in June 2004. This was driven mainly by
the substantial increase in multimedia
services usage which contributed to
approximately half of data

services revenue in June
2004. Postpaid churn
rate was better
than industry
average and
amounted to

2.6% in June
2004. As at 30
June 2004, there
were 1,065,000
customers, an increase
of 10% on 966,000 at the
end of June 2003.
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{Financial figures are expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SmarTone provides its (!:ustomers with an increasingly wide cheice
of handsets, ranging from basic to the most advanced models,
and it focuses on encouraging customers to upgrade to advanced
multimedia-capable handsets which are critical to new services
adoption. Your compalny has also been working closely with all
major vendors to improve the handsets in order to provide better
customer experience for multimedia services. Such collaboration
includes sharing Smar'llone’s service concepts and providing input
on middleware, software applications, user interface and form
factors. Vendors most closely adopting SmarTone’s ideas and input
have achieved excellent sales, while your company benefits from
a better uptake of mult“imedia services by customers using these
handsets.

SmarTone further advances the market recognition
for its customer service excellence and

consistency, validated by top awards
in retail industry competitions and
surveys. It has es‘tablished an
unprecedented record in the retail
industry in Hong Kong, by winning the Best
Team Performance Award for each of the
past three years at thej Service and Courtesy
Award of the Hong Kdng Retail Management
Association. It has also \fvon the Top Service Award
for the telecommunications network service
provider category from the readers of the mass
circulation Next Magazine for the second consecutive
year, SmarTone’s commitment to great customer service
continues to grow, providing its higher value customers
with a higher level of personal service with the recently
launched loyalty progjramme. Further enhancements will
enable your company t;o extend its lead in customer service.
i
Macau Mobile Busiress
The mobite business in Macau continues to improve and made
an increased contributiion to the Group's net profit this year.

Drermmrnmmd

Prososets

The Hong Kong market remains challenging, with your company's
competitors all focusing on promotional tariffs and aggressive
handset subsidies. SmarTone has been competing effectively by
offering superior total customer propositions to different market
segments and introducing many new services while controlling
its cost base. It has demonstrated its resilience and outperformed
the industry trend with consistent revenue and profit growth,
reflecting the effective execution of its strategy.

Your company aims to commence commercial operation of its
3G network in the fourth quarter of 2004. With territory-wide
coverage at launch, the network will offer reliable and robust
performance to customers. Further enhancements will continue,
with full MTR coverage to be available by late 2005. Compelling
3G-enabled services will be launched progressively to generate
new revenue streams. Focusing on customer needs and the total
customer experience, SmarTone will deliver substantial
improvements on 2.5G by offering richer content, larger variety
of services and higher speeds in multimedia delivery.

The commercial launch of 3G will stimulate the usage of
multimedia services and deliver revenue enhancement,
the extent of which will largely depend on competitive
market dynamics and customer adoption of 3G-
enabled handsets. Costs will rise, mainly due to
higher spending in network operations, sales,
marketing and content. To stay competitive with
market offerings, SmarTone may need to offer
significant subsidies for 3G handsets, amidst
rampant discounting and promotional activities of its
competitors. Group capital expenditure for the year ended
30 June 2005, excluding the 3G spectrum utilisation fee, is
expected to increase to approximately $700 million, compared to
$630 million for this year.



SmarTone has been investing in the new paradigm for the mobile
business where advanced muitimedia services take centre stage.
The 3G network is a crucial element of this, and will be
instrumental in further enabling new services and stimulating the
growth in usage. Notwithstanding the short-term pressure on
margins, | am confident that 3G will deliver on its promise and
create shareholder value in the longer term.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
our customers, shareholders and fellow directors for their continual
support, and to our staff for their dedication and hard work.

Raymond Kwok Ping-luen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 September 2004

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited | TR
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MANAGEMENT DISCU

{Financial figures are expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Review of financial resulis

SmarTone continued to deliver improved financial performance
in 2003/04. The Group achieved a profit attributable to
shareholders of $466 million for 2003/04 compared to $373 million
for 2002/03. Group's profit increased during the year as
contribution from Hong Kong mobile business, Macau operations
and the handset business all showed improvements.

The results for 2003/04
incorporated the financial effect
from the adoption of Statement
of Standard Accounting
Practice 12 {revised)
taxes" by the Group with effect
from 1 July 2003. This has been
applied retrospectively with comparative figures presented being

“Income

restated to conform to the new policy.

Turnover increased by $535 million to $3,367 million {2002/03:
$2,832 million) due to both higher mobile services revenue and
handsets sales.

. Mobile services revenue increased by $226 million to $2,489
million (2002/03: $2,263 million). Higher revenues from
roaming, muitimedia services, prepaid and the Macau
operations were partially offset by lower local voice revenue.

Hong Kong blended ARPU for 2003/04 was $188 (2002/03:
$183). This increase reflected the improvement in customer
guality. Postpaid ARPU dropped by a modest 1% to $211
(2002/03: $213). Lower postpaid airtime revenue resulting
from a general market downtrend of local tariffs was largely
offset by the recovery of roaming revenue from the SARS
epidemic and the continuous growth of multimedia services
revenue. However, this year on year comparison masked a
rebound in postpaid ARPU to $216 in the second half from
$207 in the first half.

. Handsets and accessories sales increased by $322 million
to $878 million (2002/03: $556 million). There was a
substantial increase in handsets sold due to the launch of
more new handset models with advanced features such
as high resolution colour screen; high pixel integrated
camera with digital zoom and flash; enhanced video
recording, audio and multimedia messaging capabilities; and
increased internal dynamic memory with support for

=
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expandable storage. GX22 was launched in September 2003
and GX32, the best GSM CameraPhone in the market, was
launched in March 2004. Both models received
overwhelming response from customers.

Cost of goods sold and services provided increased by $385 million
to $1,259 million (2002/03: $874 million) due to higher costs of
handsets sold and higher interconnection and IDD costs. This
reflected the corresponding increases in handset sales, voice
traffic and multimedia services revenues.

Other operating expenses (excluding depreciation and loss on
disposal of fixed assets) dropped by $17 million to $1,188 million
{(2002/03: $1,205 million). Nearly all categories of expenses were
lower due to improvements in operational efficiency through
process rationalisation and productivity enhancement. The decline
in operating expenses was achieved notwithstanding the Group's
commitments in bringing the best service quality, network
performance and customer experience to the market.

The business achieved earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation ("EBITDA") for 2003/04 of $919 million (2002/
03: $753 million). EBITDA for the second half of 2003/04 was
$471 million compared to $448 million for the first half. EBITDA
includes all customer acquisition costs and handset subsidy
amortisation.

Net finance income dropped by $13 million to $59 million {2002/
03: $72 million) due to lower average net cash and debt securities
balances and lower deposit

o
interest rates.
The financial performance of \
the Group’s mobile business in by
Macau continued to improve &, /
and it was profitable %__“‘""\
throughout 2003/04.
@a;@ria[ structure, liguidity and Franclal
22OUTCES

The Group's capital structure changed during the year with the
payment of the special and final dividends. Prior to the dividend
payments, the Group was financed entirely by share capital and
internally generated funds and had no external borrowings. With
increased investment in debt securities and the distribution of
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{Financial figures are expfessed in Hong Kong dollars)

|

|
the special cash dividejand, several short term Hong Kong dollar
floating rate revolving jcredit facilities totalling $600 million were
arranged. Of these faczilities, $150 million was utilised at 30 June

2004. 1

The Group had a net cejash inflow from operating activities of $801
million in 2003/04 as compared to $844 million in 2002/03. This
drop was mainly causéd by higher working capital requirements
for trade receivables and handset inventories at 30 June 2004
compared to 30 qunte: 2003. Requirements for these working
capitals fell at 30 June}ZOOS due to the 'adverse business impact
caused by the SARS epidemic in the second half of 2002/03. Cash
resources of the Grou!p, however, remain strong with cash and

bank balances and investments in held-to-maturity debt securities,
net of external borrowings, of $2,073 million as at 30 June 2004.

Capital expenditure of the Group amounted to $680 million in
2003/04 as compared ito $366 million in 2002/03. Majority of the
capital expenditure Was for 3G network rollout, 2G network
upgrade and expansio{n to further improve network guality and
coverage, and purchas{es of hardware and software for muttimedia
services provisioningi. These
items are expected to (}:ontinue
to be the major areas of the
Group’s capital expen?diture in

i

2004/05. |
!

The directors are of the‘ opinion
that the Group can fund its
capital expenditure and working capital requirements for 2004/05
with internal cash rescéurces and committed borrowing facilities.
The directors do not an]ticipate any difficulties in securing renewals
of these committed porrowing facilities upon their expiry in
November 2004,

1
Treasury poliey |
The Group invests its surplus funds in accordance with a treasury
policy approved from: time to time by the board of directors.
Surplus funds are placed as deposit with banks in Hong Kong or
invested in investmeﬁt grade debt securities. Bank deposits in
Hong Kong are maintained in Hong Kong or United States dollars.
|
The Group's investmefnts in debt securities are denominated in
either Hong Kong oriUnited States dollars with a maximum
maturity of 3 years. The Group's policy is to hold its investments
in debt securities unti| maturity.

|
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The Group arranged several
committed T-year Hong Kong
dollar denominated revolving
credit facilities from various
banks totalling $600 million
during the year.

The Group is required to arrange for banks to issue performance
bonds and letters of credit on its behalf. In certain circumstances,
the Group will partially or fully collateralise such instruments by
cash deposits to lower their issuance costs. Total amount of
pledged deposits at 30 June 2004 was $326 million (30 June 2003:
$392 million).

Functional currency and foreign exchange
SXDOSUre

The functional currency of the Group is Hong Kong dollar. All
material revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, except its United
States dollar bank deposits and debt securities, are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. The Group does not therefore have any
significant exposure to foreign currency gains and losses other
than those arising due to its United States dollar bank deposits
and investments in debt securities. The Group does not undertake
any foreign currency hedge.

Contingent [labilitfes

Performance bonds

Certain banks, on the Group’s behalf, have issued performance
bonds to the telecommunications authorities of Hong Kong and
Macau in respect of obligations under licences issued by those
authorities. The total amount outstanding at 30 June 2004 under
these performance bonds was $152 million (30 June 2003: $202
million). All performance bonds were fully cash collateralised using
surplus cash deposits.

Lease out, lease back arrangement

A bank, on the Group’s behalf, has issued a letter of credit to
guarantee the Group's obligations under a lease out lease back
arrangement entered into during 1998/99. This letter of credit is
fully cash collateralised using surplus cash deposits. The directors
are of the opinion that the risk of the Group being required to
make payment under this guarantee is remote.




Emplovess and share option scheme

The Group had a total of 1,351 full-time employees at 30 June
2004, majority of which are in Hong Kong. Total staff costs were
$359 million in 2003/04 as compared to $360 million in 2002/03.

Employees receive a remuneration package consisting of basic
salary, bonus and other benefits. Bonus payments are
discretionary and depend, inter-alia, on both the Group's
performance and the performance of the individual employee.
Benefits include retirement schemes and medical and dental care
insurance. Employees are provided with both internal and external
training appropriate to each individual’s requirements,

The Group has a share option scheme under which the Company
may grant options to the participants, including directors and
employees, to subscribe for shares of the Company. During the
year, the Company issued a total of 9,457,000 share

options which are exercisable at an

exercise price of $9.00 per share from 5
February 2005 to 4 February 2014,

S

Through a focused set of initiatives in
the areas of human resources
development and reward programmes,
the Group is striving to build a strong,
committed and engaged workforce. The
prevailing pay-for-performance culture is able
to incentivise and reward employee with
outstanding performance, which can lead to a

long-term enhancement of the overall calibre of
the employees of the Group.

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Financial figures are expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004,

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are shown in note 20 to the
financial statements.

Results

The results of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2004 are
set out in the consolidated
profit and loss account on page
36.

Dividend

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
$0.33 per share (2003; $0.27 per share) to the shareholders
registered in the Company’s register of members as at the close
of business on 9 November 2004. The proposed final dividend,
together with the interim dividend of $0.20 per share paid by the
Company during the year (2003: $0.20 per share), make a total
dividend of $0.53 per share for the financial year ended 30 June
2004.

Five year financial summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is shown on page 33.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out on pages 41 and 42.

Distributable reserves

The reserves available for distribution to the shareholders of the
Company amounted to $4,107,678,000 at 30 June 2004 (30 June
2003: $2,207,935,000).

Donations
During the year, charitable and other donations made by the Group
amounted to $6,000 (2003; $206,000).

Fixed assets
Details of the movements in fixed assets are shown in note 19 to
the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
shown in note 29 to the financial statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

* Mr. Raymond Kwok Ping-luen
Chairman

Mr. Douglas Li
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Patrick Chan Kai-lung
* Mr. Ernest Lai Ho-kai
* Mr. Michael Wong Yick-kam
¥ Mr. Andrew So Sing-tak
* Mr. Cheung Wing-yui
** M. Eric Li Ke-cheung, JP
**  Mr. Ng Leung-sing, JP
**  Dr. Sachio Semmoto

**  Mr. Yang Xiang-dong
(Appointed on 17 December 2003)

* Non-Executive Director
*x Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with Bye-law No. 110(A) of the Company's Bye-
laws, Messrs. Raymond Kwok Ping-luen, Patrick Chan Kai-lung,
Eric Li Ka-cheung and Ng Leung-sing retire by rotation, and Mr.
Yang Xiang-dong retires in accordance with Bye-law No. 101 at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. All retiring Directors,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. All remaining
Directors shall continue in office.

The term of office of the
Independent Non-Executive
Directors shall be governed by
the provision of Bye-laws No.
110 and No. 111 of the
Company.




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

|

{Financial figures are expre;ssed in Hong Kong dollars)

Directors’ sewﬁcc% contracts
|

Under an employmenticontract between the Company and Mr.
Douglas Li dated 31 Ma\f/ 2001, Mr. Douglas Li has been appointed
to act as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group with effect from’\ 17 July 2001. The contract can now be
terminated by the Company by not less than 6 calendar months’
notice {or payment in JJieu of notice) and compensation of 12

months’ salary. !

Under an employment]contract between the Company with Mr.
Patrick Chan Kai-lung f}jated 1 May 2002, Mr. Patrick Chan Kai-
lung has been appointed to act as Executive Director of the Group
with effect from 15 May 2002. The contract can be terminated by
the Company by not Iiess than 6 calendar months' notice {or

payment in lieu of notig]e).
!

Apart from the above, njone of the Directors has a service contract
with the Company with a term of more than 3 years and which is
not determinable by ithe Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
!

!
|
)
|
!
i
)
|

Interests in shares

Directors’ interests in contracts

Apart from the connected transactions referred to in this report,
no other contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 29 to 32.

Directors’ interests and short positions

At 30 June 2004, the interests of the Directors, chief executive
and their respective associates in shares and in respect of equity
derivatives, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (as defined in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance {the “"SFO")) as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO were
as follows:

and underlying shares of the Company

; Equity
]
; Shares derivatives
) Percentage
of aggregate
} Spouse interests
: orchild  Controlled Share  Aggregate to issued
Name of director ; Personal under 18  corporation Others options interests capital
| {Note)
Raymond Kwok Ping-luen — — — 2,237,767 — 2,237,767 0.38%
Douglas Li ‘ — — — — 3,000,000 3,000,000 051%
Patrick Chan Kai-lung | — — — — 1,103,500 1,103,500 0.19%
!
Note:  Information of tqie share options are listed below:
|
Cancelled/
1 QOutstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Qutstanding
| Exercise at 1 July during the during the during the at 30 June
Name of director Date of grant price 2003 year year year 2004
,‘ 3
Douglas Li : 10 February 2003 9.29 5,000,000 — 2,000,000 — 3,000,000
(Note 1) f
Patrick Chan Kai-lung 10 February 2003 9.20 200,000 — 66,500 — 133,500
{Notes 2 and 3) 5 February 2004 9.00 — 970,000 — — 970,000




Notes:

1. The options are exercisable at $9.29 per share during the period from 10 February 2003 to 16 July 2011. The options can be exercised up to 20%
from 10 February 2003, up to 40% from 17 July 2003, up t0 60% from 17 July 2004, up to 80% from 17 July 2005 and in whole from 17 July
2006.

2. The options are exercisable at $9.20 per share during the period from 2 May 2003 to 1 May 2012. The options can be exercised up to one-third
from 2 May 2003, up to two-thirds from 2 May 2004 and in whole from 2 May 2005.

3. The options are exercisabie at $9.00 per share during the period from 5 February 2005 to 4 February 2014, The options can be exercised up to
one-third from 5 February 2005, up to two-thirds from 5 February 2006 and in whole from 5 February 2007.

Interests in associated corporations

1. Interests in shares and underlying shares of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited
Equity
Shares derivatives
Percentage
of aggregate
Spouse ‘ interests
or child Controlled Share Aggregate to issued
Name of director Personal under 18  corporation Others options interests capital
{Note 1) {Note 2)
Raymond Kwok Ping-luen — — — 1,079,5615,895 75,000 1,079,590,895 44 96%
Michael Wong Yick-kam 70,904 — — — 225,000 295,804 0.01%
Ernest Lai Ho-kai — — — — 36,000 — 0.001%
Eric Li Ka-cheung — — 18,000 — — 18,000 0.0007 %

Note 1. Of these shares, Messrs. Walter Kwok Ping-sheung, Thomas Kwok Ping-kwong and Raymond Kwok Ping-luen were deemed to be interested
in 1,066,338,347 shares, which represented the same interests for the purpose of the SFO.

Note 2. Information of the share options are listed below:

Cancelled/

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding

Exercise at 1 July during the during the during the at 30 June

Name of director Date of grant price 2003 . year year year 2004

$

Raymond Kwok 16 July 2001 70.00 75,000 — — — 75,000
Ping-luen

Michael Wong 15 February 2000 70.00 150,000 — — — 160,000

Yick-kam 16 July 2001 70.00 75,000 — — — 75,000

Ernest Lai Ho-kai 16 July 2001 70.00 36,000 - — — 36,000

All options granted and accepted can be exercised up to one-third during the second year from the date of grant, up to two-thirds during the third year
from the date of grant, and in whole or in part during the fourth and fifth years from the date of grant, thereafter, the refevant options will expire.
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j
2. Interests in shares and underlying shares of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.

i

|

; Equity
\ Shares derivatives
i Percentage
i of aggregate
: Spouse interests
i or child  Controlled Share  Aggregate to issued
Name of director ] Personal under 18  corporation Others options interests capital
i {Note 1) {Note 2)
Raymond Kwok Ping-\uefﬂ — — — 1,742,500 853,333 2,595,833 0.12%
Michael Wong Yick-kam | 100,000 — — — 420,000 520,000 0.02%
‘ — — — — 800,000 800,000 0.03%

w Andrew So Sing-tak |

Note 1.  Of these shares, Messrs. Walter Kwok Ping-sheung, Thomas Kwok Ping-kwong and Raymond Kwok Ping-luen were deemed to be interested

B in 1,070,000 sﬁares, which represented the same interests for the purpose of the SFO.
S !
f Note 2. Information of the share options are listed below:
B ‘
o % Cancelled/
% Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
pod ; Exercise at 1 July during the during the during the at 30 June
5 Name of director ! Date of grant price 2003 year year year 2004
i Raymond Kwok ’ 28 March 2000 10.38 755,000 — — 251,667 503,333
y Ping-luen ‘) 7 April 2001 2.34 350,000 — — — 350,000
Michael Wong ‘ 28 March 2000 10.38 360,000 — — 120,000 240,000
Yick-kam i 7 Aprit 2001 2.34 180,000 — — — 180,000
Andrew So ; 8 July 2002 1.43 400,000 — — — 400,000
Sing-tak ] 29 November 2003 1.59 — 400,000 — — 400,000
|

The above share options are exercisable in accordance with the terms of the relevant share option scheme and conditions of grant.

;
!
!
!
i
i
|
i
i
i
i
j




3. Interests in shares of other associated corporations

Mr. Raymond Kwok Ping-luen had the following interests in the shares of the following associated corporations:

Beneficial
Name of associated corporation owner
Superindo Company Limited 10
Super Fly Company Limited 10

Splendid Kai Limited

Hung Carom Company Limited
Tinyau Company Limited

Open Step Limited

Note:

Attributable
percentage of
Attributable shares in Actual Actual
holding issue holding percentage
through through through interests in
corporation corporation corporation issued shares
{Note)
— — — 10%
— — — 10%
2,500 25% 1,500 15%
25 25% 15 16%
1 50% 1 50%
80% 4 40%

8

Messrs. Walter Kwok Ping-sheung, Thomas Kwok Ping-kwong and Raymond Kwok Ping-luen were deemed to be interested in these shares,

which represented the same interests for the purpose of the SFO. Those shares were held by corporations in which they were entitled to

control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting rights in the general meetings of those corporations.

The interests of the Directors and chief executive in the share
options of the Company and its associated corporations are being
regarded for the time being as unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives, The details of the share options of the Company are
stated under the Share Option Schemes section below.

Save as disclosed above, at 30 June 2004, none cof the Directors
and chief executive (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) and their respective associates had or deemed
to have any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its
associated corporations that were required to be entered into the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Arrangement to purchase shares or debentures

Other than the share options as mentioned above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or the
Company's holding company or any subsidiaries of the holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company or of any other body
corporate,

Directors’ interests in competing business

None of the Directors of the Company has interest in any business
which may compete with the business of the Group.
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Share Option Schemes
i

A new share option sclheme was adopted by the Company on 15
November 2002 (the ’E‘Nevv Share Option Scheme") to replace
the share option scherfhe adopted on 17 October 1996 (the "Old
Share Option Schemel') to comply with the requirements of the
Rules Governing the L{:sting of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(the "Listing Rules”).QThe Company may grant options to the
{

1

participants to subscribe for shares of the Company pursuant to
the terms as set out in the New Share Option Scheme. A summary
of the terms of the New Share Option Scheme will be set out
below.

At 30 June 2004, the following share options granted to the
participants during the year pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme were still outstanding:

Cancelled/
| Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
[ Exercise Exercise at 1 July during the during the during the at 30 June
Grantee Date of grant price period 2003 year year year 2004
$
1
Directors }
Douglas Li 10 Febru:ary 2003 9.29 10 February 2003 to 5,000,000 — 2,000,000 — 3,000,000
) 16 July 2011
Patrick Chan 10 Februfary 2003 8.20 2 May 2003 to 200,000 — 66,500 — 133,500
Kai-lung ! 1 May 2012
5 Februafy 2004 9.00 5 February 2005 to — 970,000 — — 970,000
! 4 February 2014
Employees 5 February 2005 to — 8,487,000 — — 8,487,000

5 February 2004 9.00
i 4 February 2014

i

The closing price of the srﬁares of the Company as quoted by the Stock Exchange on 4 February 2004, the trading day preceding the date of grant of the

options during the year, was $9.00.

Other than the optionsistated above, no options had been granted
by the Company to thfe other participants pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme!

The Old Share Option iScheme was terminated by the Company
on 15 Novernber 2002! Upon termination of the Old Share Option
Scheme, no further o;‘btions could be granted thereunder but in
all other respects, the provisions of the Old Share Option Scheme
shall remain in force and all options granted prior to termination
shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance therewith,
At 30 June 2004, there was no share option outstanding under
the Old Share Option $cheme.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted,

. exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.

i

Valuation of the share options granted during the year

In assessing the value of the share options granted during the
year ended 30 June 2004, the Black-Scholes option pricing model
adjusted for dividends (the “Black-Scholes Model”) was used.
The Black-Scholes Model is one of the generally accepted
methodologies used to calculate the value of options and is one
of the recommended option pricing models set out in Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules. The variables and assumptions adopted in
assessing the value of the share options granted during the year
under the Black-Scholes Model are as follows:

(a)  Risk free interest rate

2.73%, being the weighted average yield of the relevant
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes corresponding to the
expected life of the options as at the date of grant (the
“measurement date”).




(b)  Expected life of the options

5 years, being the weighted average expected life of the
options as measured from the measurement date.

(c}  Expected volatility

41.99%, being the weighted average annualised standard
deviation of the continuously compounded rates of return,
calculated with reference to the daily closing share prices
of the Company, over the most recent historical periods

Director
Patrick Chan Kai-lung

Employees
Total

No adjustment has been made for possible future forfeiture of
the options. No charge is recognised in the profit and loss account
in respect of the value of options granted during the year. The
share options granted will be recognised in the balance sheet at
the time when the share options are exercised. Share capital will
be credited at par for each share issued upon the exercise of
share options, with share premium credited at the excess of net
proceeds received over total share capital credited.

It should be noted that the value of options calculated using the
Black-Scholes Model is based on various assumptions and is only
an estimate of the value of share options granted during the year.
It is possible that the financial benefit accruing to the grantee of
an option will be considerably different from the value determined
under the Black-Scholes Model.

A summary of the principal terms of the New Share Option
Scheme is set out below pursuant to the requirements as
contained in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules:

from the measurement date which are commensurate with
the expected lives of the options.

(d)  Expected dividend

6.3%, being the average dividend yield for the two financial
years ended 30 June 2003 and 2004,

Using the Black-Scholes Model in assessing the value of share
options granted during the year, the options would have an
aggregate value of approximately $18,630,290 represented as
follows:

Estimated

Number of Estimated value
share options weighted of options
granted during average value granted during
the year per option the year

$ $

970,000 1.97 1,910,900
8,487,000 1.97 16,719,390
18,630,290

9,457,000

(a)  Purpose

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to reward
participants who have made a valuable contribution to the
growth of the Group and to enable the Group to recruit
and/or to retain employees who are regarded as valuable
to the Group or are expected to be able to contribute to the
business development of the Group.

(b}  Participants

Any employee, agent, consultant or representative of the
Company or any of the subsidiaries, including any director
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries who has made
valuable contribution to the growth of the Group based on
his work experience, industry knowledge, performance,
stiness connections or other relevant factors, will be
gligible to participate in the Scheme at the invitation of the
Directors.
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(c)

)

Maximum numbé;r of shares available for issue

The Company can issue options so that the total number of
shares that may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted underjall the share option schemes does not in
aggregate excee(‘ﬂ 10% of the shares in issue on the date
of adoption of the jNevv Share Option Scheme. The Company
may renew this Ii:mit at any time, subject to shareholders’
approval and the issue of a circular and in accordance with
the Listing Rules brovided that the number of shares to be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes does
not exceed 30% 0f the shares in issue from time to time.

At 16 September 2004, the number of shares issuable upon
the exercise of tﬁwe options granted pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme is 12,590,500 shares which
represents approximately 2.16% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Cor}npany.

i
Maximum entitiement of each participant

The maximum entitlement for any participant is that the
total number ofjshares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and to be granted in any 12-
month period uplto the date of the latest grant does not
exceed 1% of the relevant class of shares in issue.

{
Time of exercise of option
‘

i
No option may bé exercised later than 10 years after it has
been granted and: no option may be granted more than 10
years after the date on which the Scheme is acopted by

the Company in gieneral meeting.

Payment on acceptance of option

Acceptance of offer to grant an option shall be sent in writing
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of
$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant must be received
by the secretary of the Company within 28 days from the
date of the making of such offer.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The option price per share payable upon the exercise of
any option will be determined by the Directors upon the
grant of such option. It will be at least the higher of (i) the
average closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the day of offer of
such option; {ii) the closing price of a share as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the day of offer
of such option, which must be a business day; and (i) the
nominal value of a share.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from the adoption of
the Scheme on 15 November 2002,




Disclosable interests and short positions of shareholders under the SFO

At 30 June 2004, the following parties (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or as

notified to the Company:

Percentage
of shares

Number of shares to issued

Name of shareholder Note interested share capital
Cellular 8 Holdings Limited ("Cellular 8") 1and 2 289,364,972 49.61%
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited {"SHKP”) 1and2 303,632,897 52.04%
Marathon Asset Management Limited 52,720,373 9.04%
Notes:

1. For the purposes of the SFC, the interest of Cellular 8 in the 289,364,372 shares of the Company noted above against the name of Cetlular 8 is

also attributed to SHKP on the basis that SHKP controls one-third or more of Cellular 8. The number of shares noted above against the name of

SHKP therefore duplicates the interest of Cellular 8.

2. For the purposes of the SFO, the same interest of Cellular 8 is also attributed to those subsidiaries of SHKP through which SHKP holds its interest
in Cellular 8. These subsidiaries are TFS Development Company Limited and Fourseas [nvestments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties had registered as having an interest of 5% or more in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company or having short positions as recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of the Company's shares in the
market at 16 September 2004.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

During the year ended 30 June 2004, the Company repurchased
2,290,000 shares on the Stock Exchange. These repurchased
shares were subsequently cancelled. Please refer to note 29(d)
to the financial statements for details of the repurchases.

The aggregate price of the repurchased shares (before expenses)
was $18,634,075 of which $18,405,075 was charged against the
retained profits and contributed surplus accounts. A sum
equivalent to the nominal value of the repurchased shares,
amounting to $229,000 was transferred from retained profits to
the capital redemption reserve.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 30
June 2004 was there any purchase, sale or redemption by the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company's shares.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under either the
Company's Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The percentages of the Group's purchases attributable to major
suppliers are as follows:

Percentage of purchases attributable 31%
to the Group's largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable 54%

to the Group's five largest suppliers

None of the Directors and their associates had an interest in the
major suppliers noted above.

During the year, the Group sold less than 30% of its total goods
and services 1o its five largest customers,
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Connected tram$acﬁﬁ@ns

1.

Certain related pi,arty transactions as disclosed in note 31 to
the financial statements also constituted connected
transactions. The following transactions between certain
connected pers}ons {as defined in the Listing Rules) and
the Company have been entered into and/or are ongoing
for which releva‘ht announcements, if necessary, had been
made by the Confﬂpany in accordance with the requirements

of the Listing Rdles.

{a)  Certain subsidiaries and associates of Sun Hung Kai
Propertiés Limited (“SHKP"), the substantial
shareholdér of the Company, have leased premises
to the Gr&)up for use as offices, retail shops and
warehousjes and have granted licences to the Group
for the installation of base stations, antenna and
telephone Eables on certain premises owned by them.
For the year ended 30 June 2004, rental, licence fees
and manafgement fees paid and payable totalled
$52,807,000.

(b)  Certain Wk’}olly—owned subsidiaries of SHKP provided
general insiurance services to the Group. For the year
ended 30 Uune 2004, insurance premiums paid and
payable were $9,249,000.

{©)  New-Alliance Asset Management (Asia) Limited, an
associate] of SHKP, has been appointed as the
investmerf\t manager of the Group's Occupational
Retirement Scheme since October 1998, For the year
ended 30 lJune 2004, no fee was paid by the Group
as New—AEIiance Management (Asia) Limited was
remuneratéed by way of fee levied on mutual funds to
which the Group's Occupational Retirement Scheme
subscribeé‘.

)
The above tranjsactions have been reviewed by the
Company'’s lndépendent Non-Executive Directors. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors confirmed that these
continuing conne;cted transactions were entered into by the
Company in the (fnrdinary course of business and on normal
commercial termfs or terms that were fair and reasonable
so far as the sha‘reholders of the Company are concerned.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors also confirmed
that the transactions were entered into in accordance with
the terms of the agreements governing such transactions
or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties and that the
aggregate amounts of the transactions for the financial year
ended 30 June 2004 had not exceeded the relevant
maximum amount capped for each category in accordance
to the waiver previously granted by the Stock Exchange.

The auditors of the Company further confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions (i) have received the
approval of the Company's board of Directors; (i)} have been
entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions and (iii) have not exceeded the
caps allowed by the Stock Exchange in the previous waiver.

On 1 September 2000, a subsidiary of the Company,
SmarTone (BVI) Limited subscribed for a 72% interest in
the share capital of SmarTone Delta Asia (BVI) Limited and
the remaining 28% interest was subscribed for by Delta
Asia Group (Holdings) Limited.

Subsequent to the establishment of SmarTone Delta Asia
(BVI) Limited, a shareholders agreement between SmarTone
(BV!) Limited and Delta Asia Group (Holdings) Limited was
signed on 4 January 2001 whereby both shareholders
agreed to establish a wholly-owned subsidiary SmarTone -
Comunicacées Moveis, S.A. for engaging in public mobile
services in the Macau Special Administrative Region. The
shareholders agreement alsc stipulated that the
shareholders would provide for the necessary financing,
either through external financing or by way of shareholders’
loan, to both SmarTone Delta Asia (BVI) Limited and
SmarTone - Comunicagdes Moveis, S.A. in proportion to
their respective shareholding. The amount of interest
bearing loan due to SmarTone (BVI) Limited at the balance
sheet date was $35,280,000.

At 30 June 2004, the Group had an interest in an associate,
the major shareholder of which is a subsidiary of SHKP.
The principal activity of the associate is to invest in an equity
fund which primarily invests in technology related
companies in the People's Republic of China.




Audit Committee

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee of the Company were prepared
and adopted with reference to “A Guide for the Formation of an
Audit Committee” published by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (formerly Hong Kong Society of Accountants).

The Audit Committee of the Company has been established since
1999 to provide advice and recommendations to the Board. The
majority of the Committee members are Independent Non-
Executive Directors and since March 2004, the chairman of the
Committee is also an Independent Non-Executive Director. The
Committee members possess appropriate business or financial
expertise and experience to provide relevant advice and
recommendations to the Company.

The Audit Committee held @ meeting on 2 September 2004 and
reviewed the full year financial statements and reports of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2004. The Committee was
content that the accounting policies of the Group are in accordance
with the current best practice in Hong Kong. The Committee found
no unusual items that were omitted from the financial statements
and was satisfied with the disclosures of data and explanations
shown in the financial statements.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited

Code of Best Practice

In the opinion of the Directors, during the accounting period
covered by this annual report, the Group has complied with the
Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules except that the Non-Executive Directors were not appointed
for specific terms. However, the Non-Executive Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The Directors adopted the “"Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the Model Code of the Company
regarding securities transactions by directors with effect from 31
March 2004, Since its adoption, the Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code regarding
securities transactions.

The financial information disclosed in this report complies with
the disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
Raymond Kwok Ping-luen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 September 2004
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Raymond KWOK Ping-luen, Chairman & Non-Executive Director

Mir. Raymond Kwok {aged 51}, was appointed as Director of the
Group in April 1992, He holds @ Master of Arts degree in Law
from Cambridge University, a Master's degree in Business
Administration from Harvard University, an Honorary Doctorate
degree in Business Administration from The Open University of
Hong Kong and an Honorary Doctorate degree in Laws from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is Vice Chairman and
Managing Director of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd., a director of The
Kowloon Motor Bus Holdings Limited and an independent non-
executive director of Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited.

In civic activities, Mr. Kwok is a non-executive director of the
Securities and Futures Commission, a director of The Real Estate
Developers Association of Hong Kong, a member of the General
Committee of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, a
member of the Hong Kong Port Development Council, Vice
Chairman of the Council of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He is also Chairman of the Management Committees of the Police
Children’s Education Trust and the Police Education and Welfare
Trust.

Douglas L, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Douglas Li {aged 50), was appointed Chief Executive Officer
of the Group in July 2001. Mr. Li had served as SmarTone's
founding CEO from its inception in 1992 until 1996. During that
time with the Company, Mr. Li

oversaw the rapid expansion and
service innovations that laid the

foundation for what SmarTone
is today. In addition to his
experience in mobile
communications, Mr Li has
considerable experience
in corporate finance and
direct investment. Mr.
Li graduated in
Pharmacology from

the University of

| \London and is a
Y
\

YRR

Chartered Accountant. He worked for KPMG Peat Marwick in
both London and Hong Kong, and joined Morgan Grenfell in Hong
Kong in 1986. In 1989 Mr. Li joined Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited and was responsible for corporate finance, direct
investment and new business development. Mr. Li was Managing
Director of Suez Asia Holdings in Hong Kong until he re-jcined
SmarTone in July 2001.

Patrick CHAN Kai-lung, Executive Director

Mr. Patrick Chan (aged 44), was appointed Director of the Group
in October 1996. Mr. Chan was the manager of the Strategic
Development Department of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited
("SHKP") before his appointment as Executive Director of the
Company in March 2002. Prior to joining SHKP in 1990, he held
various positions in the areas of research and investment at leading
international banking groups. From December 1994 to May 1996,
he was seconded as a full-time member to the Central Policy
Unit of the Hong Kong Government. Mr. Chan has over 19 years'
experience in investment, corporate finance, planning and investor
relations. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Economics (Hon ) degree
from the University of Sydney, Australia and a Master of
Economics degree from the Australian National University.

Ernest LAl Ho-kai, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ernest Lai (aged 51), was appointed Director of the Company
in November 1998. Mr. Lai is the Company Secretary of Sun Hung
Kai Properties Limited.

Michael WONG Yick-kam, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Michael Wong (aged 52), was appointed Director of the
Company in October 2001. He obtained his Bachelor’'s and
Master's degrees in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong is an executive director of Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited responsible for strategic planning, corporate development,
infrastructure projects, financial investments and relations with
the investment community. Mr. Wong is Deputy Chairman of
RoadShow Holdings Limited. He is alsc an executive director of
SUNeVision Holdings Ltd. and a non-executive director of US!
Holdings Limited.
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Andrew SO Sing-tak, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Andrew So (aged 39), was appointed Director of the Company
in April 2002. Mr. So is the Special Assistant to Mr. Raymond
Kwok, Vice Chairmanjand Managing Director of Sun Hung Kai
Properties Limited (*"SHKP”). He is involved in developing SHKP's
IT-related businesses and formulating growth strategies for
SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.

Mr. So holds both a BA from Harvard University and MBA from
Harvard Business School and he has over 13 years' experience in
management and technology consulting, having worked
extensively in the USA, UK, Hong Kong and elsewhere in Asia,
formulating and executing strategies for companies in diverse
industries.

Prior to joining SHKP Group, Mr. So was Senicr Vice President
and Managing Director]- Greater China, with Digitas Asia Limited,
subsidiary of a Nasdag-listed systems integrator and web solutions
provider headquartered in Boston, Massachusetts. He set up
Digitas’ first office in Asia to serve global and local clients. Before
that, Mr. So held the position of Managing Director -
Telecommunications, with Scient, a technology solutions provider
based in San Francisco!, where he led business development and
solution delivery for Asian Telecom and Internet clients. He has
also worked for thejinternational consulting and systems
integration firms Accenture and Cap Gemini, in the USA and
Europe.

CHEUNG Wing-yui, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cheung (aged 54), was appointed Director of the Company in
March 2003. Mr. Cheung is a director of a number of other
publicly listed companies. He is also a non-executive

director of SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.

Mainiand Legal Affairs Committee of the \
Law Society of Hong Kong and is a Council
Member of The Open University of Hong \\
Kong. Mr. Cheung rleceived a Bachelor of \
Commerce degree in accountancy from the
University of New Soufch Wales, Australia. He is a
certified practising accountant of the Australian
Society of CPAs. Mr. Cheung has been a practising
soliciter in Hong Kongisince 1979 and is a partner of

the law firm Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo. He was admitted
as a solicitor in the United Kingdom and as an advocate

Mr. Cheung is the Vice-Chairman of the

and solicitor in Singapore.

Eric LI Ka-cheung, JF, independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Eric Li (aged 51), GBS, OBE, J.P.,, LLD, DSocSc., B.A,,
FHKICPA, FCA, FCPAA, FCIS, was appointed Director of the
Company in October 1996. Mr. Li is the senior partner of Li, Tang,
Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants and an independent
non-executive director of the Kowloon Motor Bus Holdings
Limited, Wong’'s International {(Holdings) Limited, CATIC
International Holdings Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, China
Vanke Co., Ltd. and China Resources Enterprise Limited. Mr. Liis
a member of The 10th National Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a former member of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong and Chairman of its Public
Accounts Committee. He is also & past president of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (formerly Hong Kong
Society of Accountants).

NG Leung-sing, JP, Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ng (aged 54), was appointed Director of the Company in June
1997, Mr. Ng is a member of the Legislative Council of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR") for the second
term and the Vice Chairman of The Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited.

Mr. Ng had been appointed as the Chinese Representative of the
Sino-British Land Commission and the trustee of HKSAR's
Government Land Fund from 1988 to 1997. He was the executive
director and general manager of The China and South Sea Bank
Limited, Hong Kong from 1990 to 1998. Mr. Ng is a member of
the Corporate Contribution Programme Organisation Committee
of the Hongkong Community Chest since 1992. Moreover, Mr.
Ng has been appointed as a member of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority since 1996. In the same year, he was elected as a
member of the Provisional Legislative Council of HKSAR and was
re-elected in the first Legislative Council in 1998.

Mr. Ng has been a director of Bank of China Group Charitable
Foundation Limited since 1996, a member of Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Advisory Committee since 1998,
and a member of Admission of Talents Scheme Selection
A\ Committee since 1999. In the same year, Mr. Ng was a
A\ committee member of Hong Kong Council of Social
Services, and a member of The Council & The Court of
The Lingnan University. Mr. Ng is also a member of
Fisheries Development Loan Fund Advisory
Committee since 2001. He was also appointed as
the Justice of the Peace in 2001. In 2004, Mr. Ng
. was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star by the
HKSAR government.




Sachio SEMMOTO, Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Sachioc Semmoto {aged 61), was appointed Director of the
Company in September 2002. He is a graduate of Kyoto University,
Japan and received his MS and Ph.D. (Electrical Engineering} from
University of Florida, US in 1968 and 1971, respectively.

Dr. Semmoto is Founder and CEO, of eAccess, Ltd., IP/telecom
start-up providing high-speed broadband telecommunication
services using xDSL technology. Prior to that, he spent 30 years
in senior management positions, including Nippon Telephone &
Telegraph (NTT), Kyocera and DDI Corp. (KDDI) which he co-
founded as Executive Vice President in 1984. From 1936-2000,
he was a Professor at the Graduate School
of Business Administration, Keio University
in Tokyo and a Visiting Professor at Haas
School of Business, University of California,
Berkeley in 2000. He is a frequent lecturer
at Harvard, Stanford and University of Tokyo.

He is also a Fellow of the Institute of
Electrical and Electronics Engineers. He co-
founded the Japan Academic Society of
Ventures and Entrepreneurs as Vice
President and has been supporting high tech
start-ups in Japan, Hong Kong and the US

Qo

from high-level managing positions. *C | g | #B

YANG Xiang-dong, /ndspendent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yang (aged 39), was appointed Director of the Company in
December 2003. He is the Managing Director and Co-head of
Asia of The Carlyle Group, focusing on Asian buyout opportunities.

Prior to joining The Carlyle Group, Mr. Yang spent nearly 10 years
at Goldman Sachs, and was Managing Director, co-head of private
equity investments for Asia ex-Japan and a member of Goldman's
Asia Operating Committee. Mr. Yang has led a number of
prominent private equity deals in Asia including Goldman’s
investments in Kookmin Bank of Korea and China Netcom
Corporation.

Mr. Yang received his M.B.A. from Harvard Business School and
his B.A. degree in Economics from Harvard College.

SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited

Mr, Yang is also on the boards of Boto International Holdings
Limited, Pacific China Holdings Limited and Taiwan Broadband
Communications Company Limited.
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Stephen Chau, Chief Technology Officer

Mr. Stephen Chau is a technology veteran in telecommunications
with over 18 years’ experience. Prior to joining the Group, he was
with HK Telecom CSL for more than 6 years, responsible for radio
network planning and development. From 1995 to 1996, Mr. Chau
was a member of the Radio Spectrum Advisory Committee under
the Office of the Telecommunications Authority. He was
also a member of the Advisory Committee of the
Information Engineering Department of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the
Institute of Electrical Engineers, UK and the
Institute of Engineers, Australia, as well as a
Chartered Engineer of Institute of Electrical
3 Engineers, UK. Mr. Chau holds a Bachelor
‘ degree in Electronic Engineering from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Rita Hui, General Manager, Human Resources

Ms. Rita Hui has more than 22 years’
experience in human resources,
administration and sales operations, as well as logistics gained
from local and multi-national corporations. Before joining the Group
in 1995, Ms. Hui was the Regional Personnel Manager for the
Asia Pacific zone of an international manufacturing company where
she had served for more than 10 years. She is a member of
Education Working Party of the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association. Ms. Hui has been supporting the Hong Kong Baptist
University for their Human Resources Management Mentoring
Programme and she was also a committee member of Elite
Development Programme of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. She received her Joint Diploma in Personnel Management
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and the Hong Kong Management
Association.
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SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited

Alex Ip, Chief Executive Officer of SmarTone (Macau)

Dr. Alex |p has ove
telecommunications
charge of the Interne

r 16 years’' experience in international
Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Ip was in
and multimedia strategic relations in Asia

Pacific for British Telecom ("BT"), with responsibility for

developing BT's inves1
Dr. lp holds a Ph.D. in

tment strategy and business in the region.
Data Communications from Loughborough
and is a Chartered Engineer. He is also a

University in the UK1

member of the \nstltu’tion of Electrical Engineers and the Institute

of Electrical and Electronic Engineers.

Chris Lau, Director of Future Services

Mr. Chris Lau has exténsive experience in telecommunications in
North America and Hc{mg Kong. Before joining the Group in 1992,
he had held various telecommunications product and services
development positions in both mobile and fixed network operators
in Canada and Hong!Kong for over 12 years. Mr. Lau holds a
Bachelor degree in Electrical and Electronic Engineering from the
Institute of Science a!
UK, and is a member|of the Institute of Electrical Engineers and
Asscciation of Profesis.ional Engineers of Ontario, Canada.

|

nd Technology, University of Manchester,

Christine Wai, General Manager, Consumer Market, Marketing Division

Ms. Christine Wai has ﬂ 5 years’ experience in sales and marketing.
Prior to joining the Grjoup, Ms. Wai was in charge of interactive
development and marketing for American Express International
Asia Pacific Australia region where she was responsible for
developing the interactive strategy and business for 10 countries
in the region. Ms. Wai :holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Chemistry
and Economics from the University of California Berkeley,
California, USA and l\f/laster of Business Administration degree
from Columbia Univers:ity Graduate School of Business, New York,
USA.

William Yeung, Director of Customers Division

Mr. William Yeung has more than 13 years’ experience in the
telecommunications industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung
was the General Manager of Personal Communications and Retail
Division in Tricom Telecom Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree from Hong Kong Baptist University, a Master of Business
Administration degree from University of Strathclyde, UK and a
Master of Science degree in Electronic Commerce and Internet
Computing from the University of Hong Kong.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars in millions except per share amounts)

Year ended 30 June or as at 30 June

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
Profic and lloss ccount
Turnover 3,367 2,832 2,401 2,485 2,894
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders 466 378 57 (252) (257)
Earnings/(ioss) per share ($) 0.80 0.65 0.10 (0.42) (0.43)
Dividends
Total dividend 309 2,315 41 Nil 96 N
Total per share for the year ($) 0.53 0.47 0.07 Nil 0.16 (
Special cash dividend per share ($) Nil 3.50 Nil Nil Nif
Balance shaeet 5
= =
B
Non-current assets 3,119 2,423 2,458 2,137 2,332 =
=
Net current assets 499 2,977 2,691 2,993 3,137 g
2/"13
Total assets less current liabilities 3,618 5,400 5,149 5,130 5,469 | ;
Non-current liabilities {131} (568} {21} — - §
Minority interest (21) (20) (17) (6) — 2
Net assets 3,466 5,322 5,111 5,124 5,469 |
Share capital 58 58 58 59 60 N
Reserves 3,408 5,264 5,053 5,065 5,409
Shareholders’ funds 3,466 5,322 5,111 5,124 5,469

Note:  The results for each of the four years ended 30 June 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and the assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2000, 2001,
2002 and 2003 have been restated to reflect the effect of the adoption of SSAP 12 {revised) “Income taxes” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants as explained in Note 10 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS

To the shareholders of
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 36 to 70 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsikilities of directors and
auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion solely 1o
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2004
and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 September 2004




CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended 30 June 2004
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

i
i

i
i

Turnover _

Cost of goods sold and services provided
1

Gross profit '

Other operating expenses
|

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

i

Share of loss of an associate
i

Profit before taxation |
|
Taxation
‘ o
Profit after taxation |
Minority interest

]

Profit attributable to sljfwareholders

]
i
i
i

Dividends
Attributable to the year
Special cash dividen}d

i
'

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

EBITDA

Note

16

17

18

2004
$000

3,367,036

(1,259,478)

2,107,558
(1,615,953)

491,605
60,468
(1,164)

550,909
(78,625)

472,284
(5,830)

466,454

309,274

$0.80
$0.80

919,067

2003
$000
(restated)

2,831,538
(873,581)

1,957,957
(1,606,392)

351,665
72,140

(16,620)

407,085
(28,593)

378,492
(157)

378,335

274,017
2,040,552

$0.65
N/A

753,288




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 30 June 2004
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Interest in an associate
Investments

Deferred expenditure
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories

Investments

Trade receivables
Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Customers’ deposits
Deferred income
Unsecured bank loans

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Minority interest
NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Raymond Kwok Ping-luen
Director
16 September 2004

Note

19
21
22
23
28

24
22
25

26

27

28

29

Douglas Li
Director
16 September 2004

2004
$000

1,953,794
3,050
1,146,297
12,991
2,857

3,118,989
124,230
471,081
167,279
125,370

41,490
653,808

1,683,258
154,853
681,817

24,744
72,408
150,000

1,083,822

499,436

3,618425

131,068

21,407

3,465,950

58,331
3,407,619

3,465,950

2003
$000
(restated)

1,703,220
3,050
701,092
7,554
8417

2,423,333

29,605
53,387
103,200
100,993
26,034
3,212,864

3,625,083
145,802
297,482

26,878
78,068

548,320
2,976,763

5,400,096

58,003

20,471

5,321,622

58,301
5,263,321

5,321,622
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BALANCE

At 30 June 2004
{Expressed in Hong Kongidoflars)

!
]
)
1
|
§
i

Non-current assets |
Investments in subsidiaries

|

Current assets ’

Prepayments g

Other receivables 1

Cash and bank balanceis
i

|
Current liabilities |

Other payables and accruals
|

h
|

Net current assets
|

NET ASSETS :
|

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital l
Reserves

Note

20

26

29

Raymond Kwok Ping
Director
16 September 2004

luen

Douglas Li
Director
16 September 2004

2004
$000

3,845,897

162
120
324,054

324,336

1,586
322,750
4,168,647
58,331
4,110,316

4,168,647

2003
$000

6,096,084

811
390,807

391,618

488

391,130

6,487,214

58,301

6,428,213

6,487,214




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWW STATEMENT

For the year ended 30 June 2004
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars}

Operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation of deferred expenditure
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Finance income
Finance costs
Share of loss of an associate

Exchange loss

Note

Operating profit before changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(Increasel/decrease in trade receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase/{decrease) in payables, accruals,

customers'deposits and deferred income

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid
Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities
Payment for purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Additional advance to an associate

Payment for purchase of investment securities

Payment for purchase of held-to-maturity debt securities

Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity debt securities 22

Additions to deferred expenditure

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

2004
$000

550,909

412,193
24,637
15,269

(60,468)
1,164

19

943,723
(94,625)

(100,425)

52,317

800,990

800,990

(343,382}
2,357
(7,511}
(945,841)
68,259
(30,074)
74,260

(1,181,932)

2003
$000

407,085

399,946

11,710

1,777
{72,140)

16,620

764,988
4,851

103,876

{29,822)

843,903

{(14)

843,889

(385,623)
691
(731)
(6,931)
(684,728)
601,883
(14,960)
90,762

(409,537}

oLy




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW S

For the year ended 30 June 2004
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note

Financing activities
Proceeds from shares issued under share option scheme
Payment for repurchase of shares
Contribution from a fminority sharehclder to a subsidiary company
Repayment of sharejholder’s loan from a minority shareholder
Decrease in pledged bank deposits
Proceeds from new ibank loans
Repayment of bank :Ioans
Dividends paid ,
Finance costs paid

Net cash used in finahcing activities
!

Net (decrease)/increajlse in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivélents at 1 July

]
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes

i

Cash and cash equivélents at 30 June 26
1

TATEM

2004
$000

19,192
(18,634}

(4,894)
66,519
600,000
(450,000)
(2,322,710)
(1,134)

(2,111,661}

(2,492,603}
2,820,725

66

328,188

2003
$000

(25,370)
3,262

133,263

(142,887)

(31,732}

402,620

2,418,105

2,820,725




STATEMENT OF CRANGES

For the year ended 30 June 2004
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Group

At 1 July 2002, as previously reported
Prior year adjustment in respect of
deferred tax {note 10)

At 1 July 2002, as restated

Issue of new shares in lieu of
cash dividend

Repurchases of shares

Payment of 2002 final dividend

Payment of 2003 interim dividend

Profit for the year

At 30 June 2003

At 1 July 2003, as previously reported
Prior year adjustment in
respect of deferred tax (note 10)

At 1 July 2003, as restated
Issue of new shares upon
exercise of share options
Repurchases of shares
Cancellation of share premium
Payment of 2003 final dividend
Payment of special cash dividend
Payment of 2004 interim dividend
Exchange translation differences and
net gain not recognised in the profit
and loss account
Profit for the year

At 30 June 2004

Share
capital
$000

58,435

58,4356

177
{311}

58,301

58,301

58,301

207
(177)

58,331

Capital

Share redemption
premium reserve
$000 $000
4,229,260 2,150
4,229,260 2,150
14,316 —
(25,059) 3n
4,218,517 2,481
4,218,817 2,481
4,218,517 2,461
18,985 —

— 177
(4,237,502) —
- 2,638

iIN EQUITY

Contributed
surplus
$000

199,800

199,800

198,800

198,800

199,800

(18,405)
4,237,502

(2,047,785)

2,371,112

Exchange
reserve
$000

26

26

Retained
profits
$000

642,892

{20,993}

621,893

(14,493)
{311)
(26,284)
(116,603)
378,335

842,543

893,016

{50,473)

842,543

(229)

(157,972}

{116,953)

466,454

1,033,843

Total

$000

5,132,537

{20,993)

5,111,544

(25,370}

(26,284)
{116,603}
378,335

5,321,622

5,372,095

(50,473)

5,321,622

19,192
{18,634}
(157,972}
(2,047,785}
(116,963}

26
466,454

3,465,950

s T




For the year ended 30 June 2004
(Expressed in Hong Kong doliars)
|

]
i

Company !

At 1 July 2002
Issue of new shares |

inliew of cash dividénd
Repurchases of shareis
Payment of 2002 final]dividend
Payment of 2003 interjim dividend
Profit for the year ;

AL30 June 2003 |

i
i

At 1 July 2003
Issue of new shares uipon
exercise of share op:t\'ons
Repurchases of sharejs
Cancellation of share éremium
Payment of 2003 finalldividend
Payment of special Ca.;Sh dividend
Payment of 2004 interiim dividend

Profit for the year

]
At 30 June 2004 i
]

STATEMENT OF

Share
capital

$000

58,435

177
{311)

58,301

58,301

207
(177)

58,331

Share
premium
$000

4,229,260

14,316
{25,059)

4,218,517

4,218,517

18,985

(4,237,502)

Capital
redemption
reserve

$000

2,150

31

2,461

2,461

177

2,638

Contributed

surplus
3000

938,989

938,989

938,989

(18,405)
4,237,502

(2,047,785)

3,110,301

Retained
profits
$000

332

(14,493)
{311
(26,284)
{(116,603)
1,426,305

1,268,946

1,268,946

(229)

(157,972)

{116,983)
3,685

997,377

Total
$000

5,229,166

(25,370)

(26,284)

(116,603)
1,426,305

6,487,214

6,487,214

19,192
(18,834)
(1567,972)
(2,047,785)
(116,953}

3,686

4,168,647

The contributed surplds account of the Group at 1 July 2002 and 2003 represented the difference between the nominal value of the
share capital and sharé premium of a subsidiary acguired pursuant to a group recrganisation in October 1996, and the nominal value

of the Company’s shaﬁes issued in exchange.

The contributed surplds account of the Company at 1 July 2002 and 2003 represented the difference between the nominal value of

the Company's sharesf issued in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and the net asset value of the

L . i
subsidiaries acquired. |

Following the passing|of a special resolution at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 7 November 2003, the share

premium account was fcanceﬂed and the entire balance of the account amounting to $4,237,502,000 was transferred to the contributed

i
surplus account. ;
i

1

Under the Companies!Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account is distributable to shareholders.

1




EMIENTS

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STAT

For the year ended 30 June 2004
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1  Principal accounting policies

a  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
{which includes all applicable Statements of Standard Accounting Practice ("SSAP") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the regquirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The effect from the adoption of SSAP 12 (revised) “Income
taxes” is set outin note 10. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Ruies
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the principal accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

b  Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost.

¢ Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up 10 30
June.

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group, directly or indirectly, controls the composition of the board of directors,
controls more than half the voting power or holds more than half of the issued share capital.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss account
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference between the proceeds of the sale and the
Group's share of its net assets together with any unamortised goodwill or goodwill taken to reserves and which was not
previously charged or recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the operating resuits and net assets of subsidiaries.

In the Company'’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2004
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

i
H
i

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

d

Associated company

i .
An associated company is a company, not being a subsidiary, in which an equity interest is held for the long-term and
significant influence is exercised in its management.

The cons}olidated profit and loss account includes the Group's share of the results of associated companies for the year,
and the consolidated balance sheet includes the Group's share of the net assets of the associated companies.

In the Corjnpany‘s balance sheet the investments in the associated companies are stated at cost less provision for impairment
i N .o .

losses. The results of associated companies are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivab\'}e.

Equity ac;counting is discontinued when the carrying amount of the investment in an associated company reaches zero,
unless the Group has incurred obligations or guaranteed obligations in respect of the associated company.

1

i
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net assets of
the acqu\'jred subsidiary or associated company at the date of acquisition.

i

Goodwill on acguisitions that occurred prior to 1 July 2001 was eliminated against reserves.

1

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of any goodwill, including goodwill previously written off
against reserves, is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Fixed assets

Fixed ass;ets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Fixed assets are
depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their costs less accumulated impairment losses over their estimated useful
lives on a?straight—line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehol(‘;l land and buildings Over the lease term
Leaseholtij improvements Over the lease term
Network iand testing equipment 10% - 50%
Computeéq, billing and office telephone equipment 20% - 33',%
Other fixéd assets 20% - 33',%

The cost cé)f the network comprises assets and equipment of the digital mobile radio telephone network purchased at cost.
Depreciat}‘on of each part of the network commences from the date of launch of the relevant services.

No depref}:iation is provided for any part of the network under construction, including the equipment therein.

Other fixed assets comprise motor vehicles, equipment, furniture and fixtures.

1
The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of a fixed asset is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the cérwing amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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Principal accounting policies (continued)

Fixed assets (continued)
Major costs incurred in restoring fixed assets to their normal working condition are charged to the profit and loss account,
Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful lives to the Group.

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of information are considered 1o assess whether there is
any indication that any fixed assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such
impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Telecommunications licence for third generation (“3G") services

Expenditure on acquiring the Group's 3G licence telecommunications spectrum in Hong Kong includes spectrum utilisation
fees payable for the allocation of specific spectrum and the annual royalties payable in accordance with the Group’s 3G
licence. Such fees and royalties payable prior to the launch of commercial services are integral to the development and
construction of the related network and are deferred and included within fixed assets. Depreciation will be provided from
the commencement of services over the shorter of the remaining life of the licence or the estimated useful life of the
fixed assets.

Leased assets

Leases of assets under which the lessee assumes substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Leases of assets under which the lessor has not transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership are
classified as operating leases.

(i} Assets acquired under finance leases
Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in fixed
assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to the profit and loss account over the period of the
leases 50 as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period.

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease
periods. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 1f.

(it Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the profit and loss account as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
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Principal aécounting policies (continved)

Investments

(i)

}

'
1

Inv;estment securities

Investment securities are stated at cost less any provision for impairment losses.
i

Thgée carrying amounts of individual investments are reviewed at each bafance sheet date to assess whether the fair
values have declined below the carrying amounts. When a decline other than temporary has occurred, the carrying
amjount of such securities will be reduced to its fair value. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the
prdfit and loss account. This impairment loss is written back to profit and loss account when the circumstances and
events that led to the write-downs cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the new circumstances and
evemts will persist for the foreseeable future,

He}d-to-maturity debt securities

Debt securities which are intended to be held until maturity are stated in the balance sheet at cost plus or minus any
disicount or premium amortised to date. The discount or premium on acquisition is amortised over the period to
maturity and included as interest income in the profit and loss account. Provision is made when there is a diminution
in value other than temporary.

Th«!‘e carrying amounts of individual held-to-maturity debt securities are reviewed at the balance sheet date in order
tc assess the credit risk and whether the carrying amounts are expected to be recovered. Provisions are made
vvhjen carrying amounts are not expected to be recovered and are recognised in the profit and loss account as an
ex;?aense.

|
H

Deferrefd expenditure

(i)

(i)

Licence application expenditure
! L . . . .
Licence application expenditure is deferred and amortised over the term of the relevant licence.
Ha{ndset subsidies
Th':e costs relating to handset subsidies provided to customers are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis
ov<jar the estimated subscription life of twelve months on average.

Inventt?ries
Inventories, comprising handsets and accessories, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
on the vv;eighted average basis. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated

. |
selling expenses.
1

!

Trade receivables
Provisioj is made against trade receivables 1o the extent they are considered to be doubtful. Trade receivables in the

| L.
balance sheet are stated net of such provision.
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Principal accounting policies (continusd)

m

Cash and cash equivalents

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the group’s cash management are
also included.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Company or Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected 1o settle the obligation. .

Employee benefits

0] Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability of annual leave arising from services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity leave and marriage leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(i~ Profit sharing and bonus plans
Provisions are established for profit sharing and bonus plans expected to be payable within twelve months of the
balance sheet date. Provisions are only recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising from services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

(i) Retirement benefits
Contributions to defined contribution plans, including contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss
account as incurred.

(iv)  Employee share option schemes
When the Group grants employees options to acquire shares of the Company, no employee benefit cost or obligation
is recognised at the date of grant. When the options are exercised, the amount of the proceeds received is credited
to share capital and share premium account.
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Principal accounting policies (continued)

p

Deferred taxation

Deferred téxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and}iiabi/ities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from
depreciatiofn on fixed assets and tax losses carried forward; and, in relation to acquisitions, on the difference between the
fair values jof the net assets acquired and their tax base. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date] are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred téx assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the tempo‘rary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tfaxation is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference|will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

. T
Contingent assets and liabilities

A continge}nt asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

|
Contingenf( assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

A contingént liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that cutflow of
economiciresources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent fiability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability} of an outflow occurs so that cutflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.
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Principal accounting policies (continued

Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in the profit and loss account as follows: ‘

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

(il Mobile and Internet related services
Revenue from mobile and Internet related services is measured based on the usage of the Group's
telecommunications network and facilities and is recognised when the services are rendered. Mobile service revenue
in respect of standard service plans billed in advance is deferred and included under deferred income.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the rate
applicable.

(iv)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dellars at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

The results of foreign enterprises are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rates for the year;
balance sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2004
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

)

i

2 Turnover |
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of mobile services and the sale of mobile telephones and accessories. The

amount of each| significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during the vear is as follows:
!

2004 2003

' $000 $000
Mobile services 2,489,007 2,263,140
Mobile telephoiie and accessary sales 878,029 556,120
Internet services (note 9) —_ 12,278

}

’ 3,367,036 2,831,538

i
.

3 Segment reporting
For the years ended 30 June 2003 and 2004, more than 90% of the Group's turnover, operating profit and operating assets were
attributable to its mobile communications operations in the Special Administrative Regions of Hong Kong and Macau. Accordingly,
no analysis by e;ither business or geographical segment is included in these financial statements.

4 Costof godds sold and services provided

T 2004 2003
| $000 $000
Cost of goods sold 848,871 552,499
Interconnect and international telecommunications charges 351,892 280,264
Other | 58,715 40,828
)
’ 1,259,478 873,581
Il
5 Other operating expenses |
: 2004 2003 |
$000 $000 |
Network costs : 449,339 456,022 !
Staff costs | 358,936 360,104
Sales and marketing expenses 153,783 158,980
Rental and utilities 102,889 106,090
Other operating expenses 123,544 123,463
Depreciation 412,193 399,946
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 15,269 1,777

1,615,953 1,606,392



Operating profit

Operating profit is arrived at after charging:

Depreciation
Owned fixed assets
Leased fixed assets
Amortisation of deferred expenditure
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings, transmission sites and leased lines
Auditors’ remuneration
Net exchange loss
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Contributions to defined contribution plans* (note 14)

* Net of forfeited contributions of $4,366,000 (2003: $2,617,000).

Finance income

Interest income from debt securities
Listed
Unlisted
Net realised loss on disposal of listed debt securities (note 22)

Interest income from deposits with banks and other financial institutions

Finance costs

Interest expense on bank loans repayable within five years
Other borrowing costs

2004
$000

280,495
131,698
24,637
405,937
1,020
4,865
12,841
14,750

2004
$000

19,559
28,257

47,816

12,652

60,468

2004
$000

974
190

1,164

2003
$000

257,705
142,247
11,710
442,336
1,070
268
18,848
18,437

2003
$000

17,365
16,899
(6,336)

27,928
44,212

72,140

2003
$000
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For the year ended 30 June 2004
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10

Discontinued operation

During October to December 2002, the Group discontinued providing fixed broadband and narrowband Internet access services
{"Internet services') to its retail customers. The Group also entered into an arrangement with another Internet service provider
to ensure continuity of service to its former retail customers. The business was closed in June 2003. The turnover and results,
cash flows and assets and liabilities of the Internet services business segment were as follows:

2004 2003
$000 $000
Turnover and results
Turnover — 12,278
Interest income — 2
Operating costs {112) (10,477}
Operating (loss)/profit (112} 1,803
Cash flows
Net operating cash outflow (270) (1,445)
Net investing cash inflow —_ 2
Total net cash outflow (270) (1,443)
Assets and liablilities
Current assets 598 902
Total liabilities (256) (718)

Net assets 342 184

The above assets and liabilities exclude intragroup payables and receivables.

The Group had not entered into any sale agreements for any assets of the discontinued operation. Accordingly, no profit or loss
on disposal of any asset arose.

Adoption of SSAP 12 (revised) “Income taxes”

In prior years, déferred tax liabilities were provided in respect of the taxation effect arising from all material timing differences
between the accounting and tax treatment of income and expenditure, which were expected with reasonable probability to
crystallise in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets were not recognised unless their realisation was assured beyond
reasonable doubt. With effect from 1 July 2003, in order to comply with SSAP 12 {revised) "Income taxes” issued by the
HKICPA, the Group adopted a new policy for deferred tax as set out in note 1p. As a result of the adoption of this accounting
policy, the Group’s profit for the year, net of minority interest, has been declined by $77,957,000 {2003: $29,480,000) and the
net assets at the year end have been declined by $128,430,000 (2003: $50,473,000).

The new accounting policy has been adopted retrospectively, with the opening balances of retained profits and the comparative
information adjusted for the amounts relating to prior periods as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.




11 Taxation

a  Taxation in the consolidated profit and loss account

2004 2003
$000 $000
(restated)

Deferred tax (note 28)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 78,625 26,625
Effect of increase in tax rate on deferred tax balances at 1 July — 1,968
78,625 28,593

No provision has been made for Hong Kong or overseas taxation for the year as the Group has sufficient tax losses
brought forward to offset the assessable profits for the year (2003 Nil).

b  Reconciliation between taxation charge and accounting profit at Hong Kong tax rate

2004 2003

$000 $000

(restated)

Profit before taxation 550,909 407,085
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at Hong Kong

tax rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%}) 96,409 71,240

Effect of different tax rates in other countries (576) —

Effect on opening deferred tax balances resulting

from an increase in tax rate during the year — 1,968

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 2,939 5215

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (10,106) (10,574)

Tax effect of current tax losses not recognised 929 1,720

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (10,556} (70,201)

(Reversall/charge of previously over/underprovided temporary differences {414) 29,225

Taxation charge 78,625 28,593
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For the year ended 30 June 2004
{Expressed in Hong Kong doflars)

12 Directors’ emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

2004 2003
$000 $000

Non-executive directors
Fees 1,060 945

Executive directors

Fees 160 160
Salaries and allowances 9,396 9,452
Bonuses 4,230 260
Retirement scheme contributions 673 809
14,459 10,681
15,519 11,626

During the years ended 30 June 2003 and 2004, no director

- received any emoluments from Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited (" SHKP™), the ultimate holding company of the Company,
in respect of their services toc the Group;

- waived any right to receive emoluments; or
- received any amount as inducement to join the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

In addition to the above emoluments, a director was granted share options under the Company's share option scheme during
the year. The details of these benefits in kind are disclosed under the section “Share Option Schemes” in the Report of the
Directors and note 30.

The emoluments of the directors are within the following bands:

2004 2003

Number of Number of

directors directors

$0 - $1,000,000 . 9 12
$3,000,001 - $3,500,000 1

$7,000,001 - $7,500,000 — 1

$11,000,001 - $11,500,000 1 —

1 14
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Five highest paid individuals

Of the five highest paid individuals, two (2003: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 12. The aggregate of

the emoluments in respect of the other three (2003: three) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Bonuses
Retirement scheme contributions

2004
$000

6,746
600
627

7,973

2003
$000

6,893
448
624

7,965

In addition to the above emoluments, the three highest paid individuals were granted share options under the Company's share
option scheme during the year. The details of these benefits in kind are disclosed under the section “Share Option Schemes”

in the Report of the Directors and note 30.

The emoluments of the three (2003: three) highest paid individuals are within the following bands:

$2,000,0017 - $2,500,000
$2,500,001 - $3,000,000
$3,000,001 - $3,500,000

Employee retirement benefits

2004
Number of
individuals

2003
Number of
individuals

The Group participates in two defined contribution retirement schemes, an Cccupational Retirement Scheme and a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, for employees (together “the Schemes”). The assets of the Schemes are held separately from those

of the Group in funds administered independently of the Group’s management.

Contributions to the Occupational Retirement Scheme by the Group and the employees are calculated as specified percentages
of each employee’s basic salary. Where employees leave the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable by the Group. At 30 June 2003 and 2004, &ll
available forfeited contributions had been utilised by the Group to reduce its contributions payable.

A Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme was established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance in
December 2000 and the Group's employees may elect to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Both the Group and the
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap

of monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.
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Profit attributable to shareholders
The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders includes a profit of $3,585,000 (2003: $1,426,305,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

Dividends
2004 2003
$000 $000
Interim, paid, of $0.20 (2003: $0.20) per share 116,953 116,603
Final, proposed, of $0.33 (2003: $0.27) per share 192,321 157,414*
Attributable to the year 309,274 274,017
Special cash dividend, proposed, of nil (2003: $3.50) per share — 2,040,662*
309,274 2,314,669
* The actual 2003 final and special dividend paid during the year ended 30 June 2004 and reflected as an appropriation of retained profits in
the year was|$157,972,000 and $2,047,785,000 respectively based on a total number of 585,081,428 shares in issue on the ex-dividend
date.

At a meeting held on 16 September 2004, the directers proposed a final dividend of $0.33 per share. This proposed dividend is
not reflected as aidividend payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for
the year ending 30 June 2005.

Earnings per share
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on the Group's profit attributable to shareholders of $466,454,000
{2003 (restated): $378,335,000).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year of 584,194,428 (2003;
583,327,626). The diluted earnings per share is based on 584,388,352 shares which is the weighted average number of shares
in issue during thee year plus the weighted average number of 193,924 shares deemed to be issued at no consideration if all
outstanding options had been exercised.

Nc diluted earnings per share was presented for the year ended 30 June 2003 as there were no potentially dilutive shares
outstanding.

EBITDA

EBITDA represents earnings before finance income and finance costs, depreciation and loss on disposal of fixed assets, share
of loss of associate, taxation and minority interest. EBITDA includes all costs in relation to customer acquisition and amortisation
of handset subsidies.




19 Fixed assets

Medium term Computer,
leasehold Network billing and
land and and office Network
buildings in Leasehold testing telephone Other under
Hong Kong  improvements equipment equipment fixed assets construction Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Cost
At 1 July 2003 8,000 162,056 3,130,456 465,089 62,885 322,228 4,150,725
Additions — 20,342 22,167 45,611 10,663 581,661 680,444
Reclassifications — — 244,453 — 2 - (244,455) —
Disposals — (1,296) (121,626} (8,802) (8,561) (19,398) {159,683)
Exchange adjustment — 21) - (29) {1) - (61}
At 30 June 2004 8,000 181,081 3,275,450 501,879 64,988 640,037 4,671,435
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment loss

At 1 July 2003 8,000 139,174 1,803,367 403,996 52,545 40,423 2,447 505
Charge for the year — 11,843 362,612 28,229 8,509 — 412,193
Wiritten back on disposals — (1,083} (116,546 (8,398) {7,536} (8,484) (142,057}
At 30 June 2004 8,000 149,924 2,049,433 424,827 53,518 31,939 2,717,641
Net book value
At 30 June 2004 - 31,157 1,226,017 77,052 11,470 608,098 1,953,794
At 30 June 2003 — 22,882 1,327,089 61,103 10,340 281,806 1,703,220

At 30 June 2004, the net book value of fixed assets held by the Group under finance leases amounted to $525,848,340 (2003;
$657,828,203).

Included within network under construction are capitalised 3G spectrum utilisation fees of $136,091,000 (2003 $86,081,000).
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Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares; at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries, less provision

Amount due to a subsidiary

’

i

2004
$000

939,189
2,906,708

3,845,897

3,845,897

2003
$000

939,189
5,186,282

6,125,471

(29,387)

6,096,084

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-free, and are not expected to be repayable within the next

twelve months.:

Particulars of thé principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2004 are as follows:

Place of Principal activities and
Name incorporation olace of operation
SmarTone (BVI): The British Investment holding and
Limited* Virgin Islands group financing in BVI

{("BVI")
SmarTone Mobile Hong Kong Provision of digital
Communications radio telephone services
Limited : and sales of mobile

telephones and
accessories in Hong Kong

SmarTone 3G Hong Kong Provision of 3G mobile

Limited radio telephone services
‘ in Hong Kong

SmarTone Hong Kong Provision of agency and

Telecommunications consultancy services in

Services (China) Hong Kong and Mainland

Limited China

SmarTone- Macau Provision of digital

Comunicacbes mobile radio telephone

Moveis S.A. services and sales of

mobile telephones and
accessories in Macau

* Subsidiary held directly by the Company.

All of the above isubsidiaries are limited liability companies.

Particulars of
issued
share capital

1,000 ordinary
shares of US$1
each

100,000,000
ordinary shares
of $1 each

2 ordinary
shares of
$1 each

2 ordinary
shares of
$1 each

100,000
share of
MOP100 each

Group
egquity
interest

100%

100%

100%

100%

72%
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Interest in an associate

Share of net assets

Amount due from an associate, less provision

2004
$000

3,050

3,050

Amount due from an associate is unsecured and interest free, and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the associate at 30 June 2004 are as follows:

Name

New Top Finance Limited

Investments

Investment securities
Unlisted equity securities

Place of
incorporation
and operation

The British
Virgin Islands

Held-to-maturity debt securities

Listed outside Hong Kong
Unlisted

Less: Debt securities maturing within one year of the
balance sheet date included under current assets

Total non-current investments

Market value of listed securities

Principal
activity

Investment
holding

Particulars of
issued shares held

375 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

2004
$000

47,744

595,204

974,430

1,569,634

(471,081)

1,098,553

1,146,297

592,683

2003
$000

3,050

3,050

Interest held

37.5%

2003
$000

44,144

367,287

343,048

710,335

{563,387)

656,948

701,092

379,186
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22 Investments (continued)

23

24

During the year Qnded 30 June 2004, no loss (2003; & loss of $6,336,000) arose on the disposal of certain listed held-to-maturity
debt securities as follows:

| 2004 2003

1

1 $000 $000
Proceeds from sale of securities — 172,883
Proceeds from early redemption of securities 15,600 423,000
Proceeds from m@turity of securities 52,659 —
Total proceeds received 68,259 601,883
Carrying value atEdates of salefredemption/maturity {68,259) {(608,219)

i

Net realised lossjon disposal — (6,336)
1

The held-to-matuiiity debt securities sold during the year ended 30 June 2003 were disposed of prior to maturity as a precautionary
measure in light of the deteriorating credit quality of the issuers of the securities at that time.

The early redemption of held-to-maturity debt securities arose as the issuers of the securities exercised their mandatory rights
and was not at the discretion of the Group.

!

Deferred expenditure

i

2004 2003
|

j Licence Licence

Handset  application Handset application
subsidies expenditure Total subsidies  expenditure Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Net book value at 1 July 7,554 —_ 7,554 4,270 34 4,304
Additions . 30,074 - 30,074 14,960 — 14,960
Amortisation for the year (24,637) — (24,637) (11,676) (34) (11,710)
Net book value ati30 June 12,991 — 12,991 7,654 — 7,554

i
!

At 30 June 2004, cost and accumulated amortisation of handset subsidies was $27,604,000 (2003: $787,912,000) and $14,613,000
{2003: $780,358,000) respectively. Licence application expenditure were both nil (2003: both $4,159,000).

Inventories

[nventories represent goods held for re-sale. At 30 June 2004, inventories carried at cost and inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to $123,924,000 {2003: $29,026,000} and $306,000 (2003: $579,000) respectively.



25 Trade receivables
The Group allows an average credit period of thirty days to its subscribers and other customers. An ageing analysis of trade
receivables, net of provisions, is as follows:

2004 2003
$000 $000
Current to 30 days 144,386 92,423
31 - 60 days 18,283 7,992
61 - 90 days 3,920 2,785
Over 90 days 690 —
167,279 103,200
26 Cash and bank balances

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
$000 $000 $000 3000
Pledged bank deposits 325,620 392,139 321,293 387,812
Cash and cash equivalents 328,188 2,820,725 2,761 2,995
653,808 3,212,864 324,054 390,807

Of the pledged bank deposits, $150,000,000 (2003: $200,000,000) has been pledged as cash collateral for the Group's 3G
licence performance bond as referred to in note 33 - ‘Contingent liabilities’.

27 Trade payables

An ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

2004 2003
$000 $000
Current to 30 days 64,374 66,428
31-60 days 53,004 33,786
61 -90 days 15,774 14,171
QOver 90 days 21,701 31,677

154,853 145,902




NOTES TO THE BINANCIAL STATEME

For the year ended 30 June 2004
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28 Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation for the Group's temporary differences arising from operations in Hong Kong and overseas is calculated at
17.5% (2003: 17.5%) and the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries respectively.

The componentiof deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the
year are as follols:

Depreciation
allowances in

excess of
related
depreciation Tax losses Total
$000 $000 $000
At 1 July 2002, ais previously reported — — —
Prior year adjustment 112,142 (91,149) 20,993
At 1 July 2002, ds restated 112,142 (91,149) 20,983
Charged to consolidated
profit and losslaccount (note 11a) 16,751 11,842 28,593
At 30 June 2003’ 128,893 (79,307) 49,586
At 1 July 2003, as previously reported — — —
Prior year adjustment 128,893 {79,307) 49,586
At 1 July 2003, as restated 128,893 (79,307) 49,586
Charged to consolidated
profit and loss account {note 11a) 6,199 72,426 78,625
At 30 June 2004 135,092 (6,881) 128,211

Deferred tax assejts and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and Wwhen the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

2004 2003

$000 $000

Deferred tax asséts (2,857) (8,417)
Deferred tax liabilities 131,068 58,003
128,211 49,586

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of $49,251,000 (2003: $55,467,000). The tax losses
do not expire under current tax legislation.




29 Share capital

Shares of

$0.1 each $000
Authorised
At 1 July 2003 and 30 June 2004 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid
At 1 July 2002 584,352,842 58,435
Issue of new shares in lieu of cash dividend (note a) 1,769,586 177
Repurchases of shares (note b) {3,107,500) 311)
At 30 June 2003 583,014,928 58,301
At 1 July 2003 583,014,928 58,301
Issue of new shares upon exercise of share options (note ¢} 2,066,500 207
Repurchases of shares (note d) (1,769,500) (177)
At 30 June 2004 583,311,928 58,331

Notes:

a On 24 September 2002, the Company proposed a final dividend of $0.07 on its shares for the year ended 30 June 2002.
The Company offered its shareholders a scrip dividend alternative under which shareholders could elect to receive shares
in lieu of the cash dividend. On 18 November 2002, 1,769,586 shares of $0.10 each were issued as fully paid under the
scrip dividend alternative, at a value of $8.19 per share. A premium of $14,316,000 arose in respect of the issue.

b During the year ended 30 June 2003, the Company repurchased 3,107,500 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. These repurchased shares were cancelled prior to 30 June 2003 and the amount by which the Company's issued
share capital was diminished was transferred to the capital redemption reserve.

Details of these repurchases are as follows:

Number of shares Price per share Aggregate

Month of repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest price paid
$000

July 2002 109,500 $7.95 $7.90 865
August 2002 1,712,000 $8.25 $7.60 13,687
January 2003 908,500 $8.50 $8.35 7,709
February 2003 377,500 $8.50 $8.50 3,209

3,107,500 25,370




For the year ended 30 June 2004
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29 Share capital (continued)
o During the year ended 30 June 2004, options were exercised to subscribe for 2,066,500 shares in the Company at a
consideration of $19,192,000, of which $207,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of $18,985,000 was
credited to the share premium account.

d During the year ended 30 June 2004, the Company repurchased 2,290,000 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. ©f these repurchased shares, 1,769,500 shares were cancelled prior to 30 June 2004 and the amount by which
the Com;})any’s issued share capital was diminished was transferred to the capital redemption reserve. The remaining
520,500 éhares were cancelled subsequent to 30 June 2004 and accordingly, their repurchases have not been included as
a movement of issued and fully paid share capital for the year ended 30 June 2004.

Details of these repurchases are as follows:

; Number of shares Price per share Aggregate

Month ofrepurchase repurchased Highest Lowest price paid
$000

Decembefr 2003 317,500 $7.55 $7.55 2,397
May 2004 939,000 $8.25 $7.95 7.629
June 2004 1,033,500 $8.50 $8.10 8,608
2,290,000 18,634

30 Employee share option schemes
A new share opﬂon scheme was adopted by the Company on 15 November 2002 (the “"New Share Option Scheme") to replace
the share option scheme which had been adopted on 17 October 1996 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”). This was to comply
with the requirements of the rules governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Pursuant to the New Share Option Schems, employees of the Group, including directors, may be granted options to subscribe
for shares of the Company. Details of the share option scheme are set out in the Report of the Directors.

The Old Share Qption Scheme was terminated by the Company on 15 November 2002. Upon termination of the Old Share
Option Scheme,}no further options could be granted under the scheme but in all other respects, the provisions of the Old Share
Option Scheme remained in force and all options granted prior to termination remained valid and exercisable in accordance with
its provisions. Subsequent to 15 November 2002, all options outstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme either lapsed or
were acquired for a nominal amount of $0.01 per option pursuant to the mandatory general offer for the Company by Morgan
Stanley Dean Witter Asia Limited on behalf of Cellular 8 Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of SHKP (“General Offer”).
Those options a@quired pursuant to the General Offer were subsequently cancelled.




30 Employee share option schemes (continued)

Movements in share options

Number of shares

At 1 July
Issued
Exercised

Cancelled or lapsed

At 30 June

Options vested at 30 June

2004

New Share
Option
Scheme

5,200,000
9,457,000
(2,066,500)

12,590,500

66,833

New Share
Option
Scheme

5,200,000

5,200,000

1,066,667

2003

Old Share
Option
Scheme

7,975,000

{7,875,000}

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at balance sheet date

Date of grant

10 February 2003
10 February 2003
5 February 2004

Exercise period

10 February 2003 to 16 July 2011
2 May 2003 to 1 May 2012
5 February 2005 to 4 February 2014

Details of share options granted
Details of share options granted during the year at a nominal consideration of $1 for each lot of share options granted are

as follows:

Date of grant

10 February 2003
10 February 2003
5 February 2004

Exercise period

10 February 2003 to 16 July 2011
2 May 2003 to 1 May 2012
5 February 2005 to 4 February 2014

Exercise
price

$9.29
$9.20
$9.00

Exercise
price

$9.29
$9.20
$9.00

2004
Number
of shares

3,000,000
133,500
9,457,000

12,590,500

2004
Number
of shares

9,457,000

9,457,000

Total

7,975,000
5,200,000

{7,875,000}

5,200,000

1,066,667

2003
Number
of shares

5,000,000
200,000

5,200,000

2003
Number
of shares

5,000,000
200,000

5,200,000
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30 Employee share option schemes (continued)
d Details of share options exercised
| Market value
, per share at Proceeds Number
Exercise date Exercise price exercise date received of shares
$000
27 Octobe;r 2003 $9.29 $12.55 18,580 2,000,000
28 October 2003 $9.20 $12.55 812 66,500
19,192 2,066,500

No share options were exercised during the year ended 30 June 2003.

31 Related party transactions
a During theiyear, the Group had significant transactions with certain related parties in the ordinary course of business as
set out be}ow. All related party transactions are carried out in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements

governing the transactions.

2004 2003

$000 $000
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings and transmission sites (note i) 52,807 55,716
Insurance expense (note ii) 9,249 7,747
Leased Iiné and information technology ("IT") outsourcing (note iii) —_ 663
Consultancy fees (note iv) — 279
Notes:
(i) Opetating lease rentals for land and buildings and transmission sites

Certain subsidiaries and associated companies of SHKP have leased premises to the Group for use as offices, retail
shops and warehouses and have granted licences to the Group for the installation of base stations, antennae and
telephone cables on certain premises owned by them.

For the year ended 30 June 2004, rental and licence fees paid and payable to subsidiaries and associated companies
of SHKP totalled $52,807,000 (2003: $55,716,000).

(il Insufance services

Sun iHung Kai Properties Insurance Limited and Hung Kai Insurance Brokers Company Limited, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of SHKP, provide general insurance services to the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2004, insurance
prenﬁiums paid and payable were $9,249,000 (2003: $7,747,000).



31 Related party transactions (continued)
(it Leased line and IT outsourcing

SUNeVision Super e-Technology Services Limited and SUNeVision (Management Services) Limited, subsidiaries of
SHKP, contracted with the Group to provide leased line and IT outsourcing services respectively. The contracts
were terminated during the year ended 30 June 2003 and for the year ended 30 June 2004, the leased line rentals
and IT outsourcing services fees paid were both nil (2003: $120,000 and $503,000 respectively).

(iv)  Consultancy services

British Telecommunications Pic. ("BT"), a substantial shareholder of the Company until 7 January 2003, and a
subsidiary company of BT provided consultancy services to the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2004, there
were no transactions and accordingly the consultancy fees paid were nil {2003: $279,000).

b At 30 June 2004, the Group had an interest in an associate, the major shareholder of which is a subsidiary of SHKP. The
principal activity of the associate is to invest in an equity fund which primarily invests in technology related companies in
the People's Republic of China.

c New-Alliance Asset Management (Asia) Limited (“New Alliance”), an associate of SHKP, has been appointed as the
investment manager of the Group's QOccupational Retirement Scheme since October 1999. For the years ended 30 June
2003 and 2004, no fees were paid by the Group as New-Alliance is remunerated by way of fee levied on mutual funds to
which the Group’s Occupational Retirement Scheme subscribes.

d The trading balances set out below with SHKP and its subsidiaries (the "SHKP Group"} (including buildings and estates
managed by the SHKP Group) are included within the relevant balance sheet items:

2004 2003
$000 $000
Trade receivables ‘ 634 331
Deposits and prepayments 6,337 7,061
Trade payables 393 329
Other payables and accruals 407 467

The trading balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on similar terms to those offered to unrelated parties.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2004
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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32 Commitments
a Capital commitments
Capital co}mmitments outstanding at 30 June 2004 not providead for in the financial statements were as follows:

!

Group

2004 2003
$000 $000

Contracteﬁ for
Fixed assets 29,737 82,408
Equity securities 19,500 27,300
Furtherladvances to an associate — 1,324
Authorised but not contracted for 745,589 418,730

794,826 529,762

i

The Comp;any did not have any capital commitments at 30 June 2004 (2003: Nil).

b  Operating lease commitments
At 30 June 2004, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Group

2004 2003
$000 $000

Land and buildings and transmission sites
Within dne year 239,704 220,746
After orie year but within five years 161,036 121,944
After five years 14,369 17,524
415,109 360,214

)
Leased lines

Within ane year 29,832 37,164
After orle year but within five years 2,852 3,129
32,684 40,293

]

'

The Company did not have any operating lease commitments at 30 June 2004 (2003: Nil).

i

1




SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited

33 Contingent liabilities

a Performance bonds

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
$000 $000 $000 $000
Hong Kong 3G licence (note ¢} 150,000 200,000 150,000 200,000
Other 1,942 1,942 —_ —
151,942 201,942 150,000 200,000

The performance bonds were issued by certain banks in favour of the Telecommunications Authorities of Hong Kong
{("TA”) and Macau in accordance with various telecommunications licences issued by those authorities to the Group. The
banks’ obligations under the performance bonds are guaranteed by the Company and various subsidiaries of the Company.

During the year ended 30 June 2004, all performance bond obligations relating to the Group's Fixed Telecommunications
Network Services Licence were satisfied and the related bonds released.

b Lease out, lease back agreements
Under certain lease out, lease back agreements entered into during the year ended 30 June 1999, a subsidiary of the
Company has undertaken to guarantee the obligations of the intermediary lessees to the lessors as agreed at the inception
of the lease for a period of 16 years. The directors are of the opinion that the risk of the subsidiary company being called
upon to honour this guarantee is remote and accordingly the directors do not consider that an estimate of the potential
financial effect of these contingencies can practically be made.

¢ Acquisition of telecommunications licence for 3G services
On 22 October 2001, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company was issued a Mobile Carrier Licence {"the Licence").
This Licence is for the provision of public telecommunications network services in Hong Kong using 3G mobile services
technology. The Licence is for a duration of fifteen years. The following fees are payable under the Licence:

(i) For each of the first five years from 22 October 2001, $50 million per annum payable at the end of each year;
(il For the remaining years of the Licence; the greater of:

- 5% of network turnover (as defined in the Licence) in respect of the relevant year; or

- The Appropriate Fee (as defined in the Licence) in respect of the relevant year; and

(i) $1,388,888 payable on the issue of the Licence.




i
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited

n

For the year ended 30 June 2004
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

|

33 Contingent liabilities (continued)

c

Acquisition of telecommunications licence for 3G services (continued)

The total amount of the annual fees for the first five years of the Licence is $250 million. The total minimum amount of
fees payéble over the remaining ten years is $1,057 million giving a total minimum amount of annual fees over the fifteen
years ofithe Licence of $1,307 million. The net present value of the minimum total annual fees payments under the
Licence at its inception, at an assumed cost of capital of the Group of 13%, is approximately $458 million.

The Gro(ﬁp is required to provide a performance bond to the TA. The Licence sets out the amount and duration of the
performance bond as follows:

- A ;jerformance bond upon inception of the Licence with a duration of five years and for an amount equal to the fees
forfthe first five years ($250 million).

- The performance bond must be revised annually to remain in force for five years {or to the end of the Licence, if a
shorter period).

- Thé amount of the performance bond shall also be revised annually to equal the minimum annual fees payable to
thei TA during the next five years (or till the end of the Licence, if a shorter period).

On 22 Oc}tober 2003, the second anniversary of the issue of the Licence and subsequent to the payment of the second
year spec¢trum utilisation fee of $50 million, the performance bond was revised. In accordance with a further one-year
waiver granted by the TA, the revised bond was for 150 million with a duration of three years.

The TA cén claim payment under the performance bond on the occurrence of various events including failure of the
Licenseeito pay all or any fees due to insolvency of the Licensee or upon surrender of the Licence by the Licensee.

Bank facilities guarantees

At 30 June 2004, there were contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees given by the Company on behalf of a wholly
owned subsidiary relating to short term revolving credit facilities granted by certain banks of up to $600 million (2003: Nil).
Of this amount, $150 million (2003: Nil}) was utilised by the subsidiary at 30 June 2004.

34 Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been adjusted as a result of the change in accounting policy for deferred taxation, details of
which are set ot in note 10.

Ultimate holding company

35
The directors consider the ultimate holding company at 30 June 2004 to be Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, a company
incorporated in ll-long Kong with its shares listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

36 Approval of financial statements

The financial staj‘[ements were approved by the board of directors on 16 September 2004.
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